
 
 

ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 20 June 2016 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Geoff Ellis (Chair), Liz Maxwell (Vice-Chair), 
Jane Loffhagen, Ronald Hills, Adrianna McNulty, Ric Metcalfe, 
Edmund Strengiel, Naomi Tweddle and Loraine Woolley 
 

Substitute member(s): 
 

Councillors Gill Clayton-Hewson and Ralph Toofany 
 

Independent Person(s): 
 

Chris Elkington and Roger Vine 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Democratic Services and Becky Scott 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 21 March 2016  
 

3 - 8 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  Individual Electoral Registration Update  
 

9 - 10 

4.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

11 - 18 

5.  Member Induction Review  
 

19 - 22 

6.  Local Democracy Week Update  
 

23 - 24 

7.  Work Programme Update  
 

25 - 30 

8.  Member Code of Conduct Complaint Considered by the Monitoring 
Officer  
 

31 - 42 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally blank.



Ethics and Engagement Committee 21 March 2016 

 
Present: Councillor Geoff Ellis (in the Chair) 

 
Councillors: Gill Clayton-Hewson (substituted for Ric Metcalfe), 

Carol Daniel, Tony Gray, Gary Hewson (substituted for 
Liz Maxwell), Ronald Hills, Adrianna McNulty and 
Edmund Strengiel 
 

Independent Person(s): Chris Elkington 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Liz Maxwell, Councillor Ric Metcalfe, Councillor 
Loraine Woolley and Roger Vine 

 
26.  Confirmation of Minutes - 7 December 2015  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2016 be confirmed. 
 

27.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

28.  Code of Conduct: Cases Review  
 

The Legal and Democratic Services Manager: 
 

a) presented a report containing information on recent cases relating to other 
local authorities' codes of conduct. 

 
b) summarised the cases within the report, noting the particular areas which 

members might wish to consider. 
 

c) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members: 
 

 discussed the rules surrounding councillors continuing in office after receiving 
non-custodial sentences, noting that a councillor had a moral duty to step 
down in some circumstances regardless of their legal rights to continue. 

 questioned whether the formation of a wholly-owned housing company would 
cause issues with regard to the declaration of interests by members. 

 noted that bias was a difficult concept to anticipate, particularly when 
councillors were adjudged not to have pecuniary interests in a matter.  

 agreed that if members were in any doubt as to whether they had an interest 
which would preclude them from taking part in business, that the safest 
course of action was to excuse themselves from the meeting. 

 
The Legal and Democratic Services Manager advised that officers were actively 
considering the implications for elected members’ interests of operating a wholly-
owned housing company. It was further noted that members needed to consider 
potential interests when acting on any body in their capacity as a councillor. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

29.  Members' IT Allowances  
3

Item No. 1



 
The Legal and Democratic Services Manager: 
 

a) presented a report requesting that members consider whether the current 
allocation of IT allowances to members remained fit-for-purpose. 
 

b) proposed a change from the current payment of IT allowances directly to 
members to a system which would allow an equivalent sum to be held in 
reserve in order to fund the future allocation of IT equipment to elected 
members. 
 

c) noted that the uptake of paperless working by councillors had proceeded 
quickly, which had facilitated savings for the Council at a time when budgets 
were under ever-increasing pressure. 
 

d) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 

Members: 

 noted the savings which had been made through paperless working and the 
general effectiveness of the devices provided to councillors. However, the 
overall effect of any proposal to withdraw IT allowances was unclear. 

 questioned the need for members to claim IT allowances, noting that most 
would continue to subscribe to broadband internet regardless of receiving an 
allowance and so there was no justification for the Council to continue 
providing this money to members. 

 noted that other councils, in particular the Lincolnshire County Council, 
appeared to be considerably more generous with regard to the provision to 
councillors of both a basic allowance and additional allowances relating to 
mileage and IT. 

 discussed the changed provision of IT equipment in recent years, stating that 
the Council should pay for councillors’ broadband if councillors were using 
Council devices at home. However, it was possible that the amount which 
was paid should be reviewed. 

 suggested that the Council should provide tablet computers in meetings for 
use by members of the public in order to reduce the need for printed agendas. 

 expressed concerns that the Council could not know councillor’s individual 
financial circumstances and so it could not be assumed that councillors would 
be able to afford broadband internet. 

 noted that the downloading of emails and agendas would not constitute a 
significant proportion of a councillor’s home broadband usage and that these 
could also be downloaded at City Hall. Given the provision of tablet 
computers by the Council to members, the re-allocation of IT allowances to 
fund the future provision of these devices would represent good value. 

 emphasised that councillors provided good value for money with regard to the 
hours of work put into Council business for a relatively low allowance. The 
provision of IT allowances by the Council was considered to be analogous to 
providing some staff with work-related clothing. 

 stated that IT allowances were provided to defray costs incurred by members 
directly and that if members felt they were not adequately compensated for 
their general duties, it would be more transparent to increase the basic 
allowance rather than to continue providing IT allowances which were not 
actually required. 

 commented that the savings made through paperless working should have 
been ring-fenced for use on members’ IT equipment. 

 
4



RESOLVED that the report be provided for the consideration of the respective 
political groups after the election on 5 May 2016. 
 

30.  Member Development Update  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) presented a report outlining the delivery of member development events in 
the previous year and plans for the forthcoming year. 
 

b) drew members’ attention to the proposed member development events to be 
provided as part of the member induction and in the new electoral year. 
 

c) highlighted events suggested by members in response to a request from 
officers for potential training activities in the coming year and invited the views 
of the Committee regarding their suitability for implementation. 
 

d) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 
Members: 
 

 discussed the length of the induction programme, noting that an intensive 
two-day programme hindered members’ ability to absorb the information 
being provided to them. 

 expressed doubts regarding the need for training regarding public speaking, 
establishing personality types, and improving writing skills. 

 welcomed the suggested training with regard to councillor casework and 
providing a general introduction to local government. 

 noted that a previous training session regarding engaging with the public had 
encompassed dealing with different personality types and that this had been 
very useful. 

 questioned which of the proposed training events would be mandatory for 
members to attend. 

 noted approval for the proposals to reduce the number of events held during 
the induction days, with some events being held over the course of the 
proceeding weeks. 

 suggested that the training in relation to writing skills be merged into one 
session. 

 discussed the problems faced by members in receiving responses from 
officers to customer service enquiries and requested that this be addressed 
as part of any training on ward councillor casework management. 

 noted that all members should seek to attend Planning Committee training as 
a result of the potential consideration of planning applications by Full Council. 

 
The Democratic Services Officer responded that: 
 

 the induction programme had been reduced in length but that two days were 
still allocated to the programme so that new members were able to be active 
councillors from as early a stage as possible. 

 only a limited number of training events were considered to be mandatory, 
including those relating to the Planning Committee and Licensing Committee. 
In addition, the Council has particular duties to ensure councillors were aware 
of issues relating to safeguarding vulnerable people and preventing terrorism. 

 

5



RESOLVED that the plans for the member development programme in 2016/17 be 
noted and that officers be requested to: 
 

1. proceed with the delivery of additional training in relation to managing 
casework and the structure of local government. 
 

2. offer the remaining training which had been proposed by elected members 
only if specifically requested. 

 
31.  Proposed Amendments to the Constitution  

 
The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) presented a report outlining proposed changes to the Council’s Constitution. 
 

b) advised that the changes had been compiled by officers where it was 
considered that elements of the Constitution could be made clearer, updated, 
or had fallen into desuetude. 
 

c) drew particular attention to the proposed change to remove the Equality 
Objectives Action Plan from the Policy Framework. 
 

d) invited members’ questions and comments. 
 

Members: 
 

 expressed uneasiness regarding the removal of powers from Council to the 
Executive regarding the Equality Objectives Action Plan. 

 discussed the wording of the proposed change to the deadlines for motions 
and public questions. 

 agreed that the Council should seek to provide documents in electronic form 
by default wherever possible. 

 
The Democratic Services Officer confirmed that under the proposed changes 
Council would retain its power to set the Council’s Equality Objectives. However, the 
associated action plan was regularly updated and involved the allocation of staff and 
financial resources, which appeared to be more appropriately delivered under 
Executive powers  However, members would retain their right to scrutinise the 
delivery of the Equality Objectives and to call-in any decisions taken by the 
Executive which were contrary to them. 
 
RESOLVED that the proposed changes to the Constitution be recommended to 
Council. 
 

32.  Work Programme 2016-17  
 

The Democratic Services Officer: 
 

a) presented the proposed Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 
for consideration by members. 
 

b) noted that the Chair had expressed an interest in seeking to engage with local 
schools in both Local Democracy Week and potentially with regard to the 
forthcoming referendum on the United Kingdom’s membership of the 

6



European Union. 
 

c) invited members' questions and comments.  
 
RESOLVED that:  
 

1. the work programme be approved. 
 

2. officers be requested to write to local schools to encourage further work on 
the Committee’s objective to increase democratic engagement among young 
people. 

 

7



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE                     20 JUNE 2016  
 

 
SUBJECT:  
 

INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL REGISTRATION - UPDATE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

RESOURCES 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

STEVE SWAIN – PRINCIPAL DEMOCRATIC OFFICER 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide a further update to the Ethics and Engagement Committee on the 

Individual Electoral Registration system (IER) since its inception on the 10 June 
2014. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On 10 June 2014 the way in which persons registered to vote changed. The 
Government introduced IER across the country. The system was introduced 
through the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 which became law 
on the 31 January 2013. Previously registration was done by the householder, 
who was responsible for completing the registration on behalf of all residents 
eligible to vote in the household. Under IER, everyone in the household who is 
eligible to vote is responsible for registering themselves. Householders are initially 
required to complete a Household Enquiry Form (HEF) with the details of all 
occupants. Any person who is not currently registered will be sent an IER form 
which requires them to provide the following information: 
 

 Name 

 Address 

 Date of Birth 

 National Insurance number 

 Nationality 
 
All applications received are processed through the Council’s Electoral 
Registration software system and submitted to the Government’s IER portal for 
checking against DWP information. Once confirmation is received electors are 
entered on the electoral register. In a small number of cases where applications 
are rejected further information including passport and other documentary 
evidence is requested. 
 

3. 2015 Canvass 

3.1 In July 2015 the first full canvass commenced under IER with HEF’s being 
delivered to all properties in Lincoln. HEF’s were pre-printed with the details of 
persons currently registered at the property. If the details were correct a member 
of the household could sign the form and return it to the Council and not be 
required to take any further action. Facilities to respond by text, sms and 
telephone were also offered, and over 8,000 electors took advantage of this to 
confirm their details. 
 

9

Item No. 3



In addition a student was employed to deliver forms to student properties on the 
University Campus. Further work will be undertaken with the University in the new 
year to publicise student voting rights who unlike other electors can choose to 
register at their home or term time address or both. 
 

3.2 In the event of changes being made IER forms were sent to persons who had 
been entered on to the forms and required to be registered.  

3.3 All non-responses to either HEF’s or IER forms that were sent out have been 
followed up with reminders. In addition comparison work with the Council Tax data 
base was also undertaken to try and confirm electors at properties. 
 

3.4 The register was published on the 1 December 2015 with a total electorate of 
60,323. Further work has been undertaken in January 2016 to further maximise 
registration including:- 
 

 Mapping of Empty Properties 

 Empty Property Canvass 

 Issue of Household Notification Letters 

 Use of Social Media 
 

3.5 Following the completion of the work detailed in paragraph 3.4 the electorate prior 
to the elections in May stood at 63,270. The maximising registration work has 
continued and the electorate currently stands at 65,062. Once registration for the 
EU Referendum closes an update on this figure will be given at the meeting. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance (including whole life costs where applicable) 
 
A grant of £50,000 was received from Government for 2015/16, giving a net cash 
limit budget to the Council of £334,080.The Government has recently announced 
that it will be providing £28,167 for the financial year 2016/17. Officers are 
currently assessing the impact of this on the budget for 2016/17. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules  
 

4.3 IER is provided for by the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 and 
the City Council follows the requirements of the Act. In addition joint guidance 
issued by the Cabinet Office and the Electoral Commission is also followed. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members of the Ethics and Engagement Committee consider the contents of 
the report. 
 

 
Lead Officer: Steve Swain, Principal Democratic Officer  

Telephone (01522) 873439 
 

10



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  20 JUNE 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
CODE OF CONDUCT: CASES REVIEW 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER, CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide information on recent cases relating to other local authorities’ codes of 

conduct and consider their potential relevance to the Council. 
 

2. National Cases Relating to Councillor Conduct 
 

2.1 Since the removal of the Standards for England Board as part of the changes 
brought through the Localism Act 2011, the Council no longer receives a summary 
of cases reported from across the country. As a result, the cases chosen for 
consideration are drawn primarily from local government networks and media 
reports, and are summarised below.  
 

2.2 Any reports highlighted are gathered solely from information made available by the 
relevant local authorities. As cases are often considered to contain exempt 
information, there are potentially elements of the case which may not be publicly 
available. As such, members should be aware that any cases below are provided 
for the purpose of discussion and may not give the full picture in every regard. 
 

2.3 Chelmsford City Council 
A councillor was found not to have breached the member code of conduct after 
building a bungalow in the grounds of his house allegedly without gaining the proper 
permission for its use as a home by his son. An independent report found the 
councillor did not appear to have breached the member code of conduct with the 
possible exception of the requirement for the councillor to add the new property to 
his register of interests.  
 

2.4 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
The chair of the planning committee was investigated with regard to breaching the 
member code of conduct in relation to two separate comments alledgedly made in 
relation to planning decisions. These comments were ‘I hated doing that but I was 
under instructions… by the leader’ and ‘bearing in mind it was election time last 
time, we did scratch around to find reasons to refuse it’.  
 
A hearing panel agreed with an independent report that the councillor had breached 
the code by failing to provide leadership to the authority and communities by 
personal example and conducting himself in a manner likely to bring the authority 
into disrepute, although it did not have sufficient evidence to conclude the second 
comment had been made. The agreed sanctions for this behaviour were to publish 
censure in relation to the councillor, to recommend the removal of the councillor 
from the planning committee, and to arrange training for the member. 
 

11

Item No. 4



2.5 Wigan Council 
A councillor was found to have breached the member code of conduct after it was 
concluded that he had sworn at a fellow councillor, thereby breaching the 
requirement to avoid bringing the council into disrepute, acting in a bullying or 
aggressive manner and not respecting fellow members of the council. The hearing 
was held in the councillor’s absence after postponing the hearing once. The 
councillor has been previously sanctioned to having his emails monitored and if re-
elected he would also be barred from accessing a ward funding scheme for two 
years. These sanctions would be reduced from two years to one year if an apology 
were made by the councillor. 
 

3. Potential Learning Points  
 

3.1 
 

Having regard to these complaints which have been investigated by other local 
authorities, members should consider whether any appropriate actions can be 
identified to ensure that the likelihood of any future breaches of the Member Code of 
Conduct by members representing the City of Lincoln Council is limited. 
 

3.2 
 

The Ethics and Engagement Committee may wish to consider the following actions 
if any learning points are identified: 

 Issuing guidance to members and any other relevant parties on a general 
topic which presents a cause for concern with a view to potential future 
breaches of the Member Code of Conduct. 

 Requesting specific training for all members or members whose individual 
status would be relevant to the particular training. 

 Proposing amendments to the Member Code of Conduct and the procedure 
for considering complaints, if improvements can be identified. 

 Any other actions falling within the remit of the Committee which might aid 
the improvement of councillors’ conduct. 

 
3.3 
 

If members are aware of further cases of broad interest from other local authorities 
in relation to ethical behaviour by councillors, details can be submitted via 
Democratic Services or raised at the meeting of the Committee for potential 
inclusion in a future report. 
 

4. Strategic Priorities  
 

4.1 The development of a fit-for-purpose council relies upon the proper conduct of 
officers and members. By considering the lessons learned from other local 
authorities the Council is better positioned to take preventative action to resolve any 
potential issues before they arise. 
 

5. Organisational Impacts  
 

5.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5.2 Legal Implications  
The Ethics and Engagement Committee’s role includes the promotion and 
maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors and co-opted members; 
this report forms a part of the work of the Committee in proactively addressing any 
matter that could detract from the reputation and behaviour of the Council or its 

12



councillors. 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

6.1 
 

That the Ethics and Engagement Committee note the contents of the report and 
recommend any suitable action arising from it. 

 

13



This page is intentionally blank.



 
 

DECISION NOTICE 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE HEARINGS PANEL 
 

COMPLAINTS AGAINST COUNCILLOR WORTHINGTON OF 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 
Complaint 
 
On the 25th April 2016 a Hearings Panel of this Authority’s Standards Committee 
considered complaints made by: 
 
Geoffrey Snow (allegation 1) 
Councillor Christopher Wood (allegation 1) 
John Bebbington (allegation 1) 
Louise Salt (allegation 1) 
Jane Peach (allegation 1) 
David Norwood (allegation 1) 
Marion Armstrong (allegation 1) 
Michael Sutcliffe (allegation 1) 
Councillor Christina Jebb (allegation 2) 
 
concerning the alleged conduct of Councillor M. Worthington, a member of 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council.  A general summary of the complaints is 
set out below. 
 
Allegation 1 
That Councillor Worthington made comments at the planning applications 
committee meeting on 13th August 2015 following the item on the planning 
application in respect of Endon Riding School that he hated doing that but was 
under instructions.  
 
Allegation 2 
That Councillor Worthington made comments on 13th August 2015 in respect of 
an application in Cheadle Road that suggested that the application had 
previously been refused for political reasons, saying “Bearing in mind it was 
election time last time, we did scratch around to find reasons to refuse it.”  

15



 
Decision  
 
In accordance with Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 the Standards 
Committee Hearings Panel decided: 
 
Allegation 1 
That Councillor Worthington had breached the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Hearings Panel applied the appropriate objective test as to whether there 
had been a breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct, i.e. would a reasonable 
person aware of all the material facts and ignoring all immaterial factors consider 
that there had been a breach of the Code. The Panel took into account as a 
material consideration the Investigating Officer’s finding that he accepted 
Councillor Worthington’s explanation as to why he had made the recorded 
comments. However, after also taking into account all the other relevant 
considerations, and in particular the requirement for public confidence in the 
planning process which it was considered would be seriously harmed by 
Councillor Worthington’s comments, on balance the Panel decided that the 
District Council’s Code of Conduct had been breached. 
 
Allegation 2 
That Councillor Worthington had not breached the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
There was insufficient evidence to show, on the balance of probabilities, that the 
comment, as outlined in the complaint, was made. 
 
Actions 
 
The Hearings Panel decided that the following actions should be taken: 
 

(a) To censure/reprimand the member; 
 
(b) Its findings in respect of the member’s conduct should be published; 
 
(c) Its findings should be reported to the Council for information; 
 
(d) To recommend to the member’s Group Leader that he be removed from 

membership of the Planning Applications Committee; 
 
(e) To instruct the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member. 
 
 

16



A copy of this decision notice will be sent to the complainants and to the member.  

17



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  20 JUNE 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
MEMBER INDUCTION REVIEW 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide an update on the outcome of the member induction process. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The Council usually holds elections every three years in four. However, following 

changes to the City of Lincoln Council’s electoral boundaries, elections were held 
for all councillors’ seats on 5 May 2016. 
 

2.2 The induction process has been considerably revised in recent years to provide new 
members with a considerably more thorough and structure introduction to acting as 
a member of the City of Lincoln Council. However, officers will continue to adapt the 
programme in response to member feedback and the changing environment in local 
government. 
 

3. May 2016 Inductions 
 

3.1 
 

Following the election held on 5 May 2016, seven new councillors were elected to 
the City of Lincoln Council, including one councillor who had previously been an 
elected member. Each of the councillors attended one or both of the induction days 
held on 11 and 12 May 2016. 
 

3.2 
 

A provisional schedule for the 2016/17 induction was previously considered by the 
Ethics and Engagement Committee and the induction was subsequently delivered in 
accordance with these plans. The schedule is re-produced below for members’ 
information: 
 

3.3 
 

Monday, 9 May 2016 
10:00 
 

Formalities, including: 
 Issuing of City Hall access cards 
 Taking photographs for Council website and publicity 

materials 
 Signing the acceptance of office 

12:00 Lunch  
13:00 Meet the Directors (opportunity to meet with the Council’s directors 

for introductions and an overview of the directorates and their 
service priorities). 

13:45 Meet the Officers Session (over the course of the induction officers 
from the departments with which councillors and the public deal 
most frequently gave short presentations on the Council’s 
responsibilities and how to deal with any issues that might arise.): 

 Environmental Services 
 Work-Based Learning 

19

Item No. 5



14:25 Break 
14:40 Meet the Officers Session: 

 Planning 
 Food Health & Safety 
 Housing Allocations 
 Housing Repairs & Maintenance 

16:00 Induction close 
 
 
Tuesday, 10 May 2016 
10:00 Member Code of Conduct and Meeting Procedure Rules Briefing 
11:00 Meet the Officers Session: 

 Customer Services 
 Data Protection 
 Private Housing 

12:00 Lunch  
13:00 Meet the Officers Session: 

 Civic Engagements 
 Communications 
 Anti-Social Behaviour 
 Licensing 

14:20 Break 
14:35 Meet the Officers Session: 

 Revenues & Benefits 
 Neighbourhood Management 
 Housing Estates 

15:35 Induction close and feedback session (an opportunity for councillors 
to consider their new positions and to raise any issues which have 
not yet been resolved). 

 

 
3.4 
 

 
As previously reported to members, in response to member feedback from the 
previous year, the induction days have been shortened and additional handouts 
have been compiled to limit the risk of members feeling overwhelmed by 
information. Subsequent to the initial induction days the following training or 
member development events have been scheduled or held: 
 

 Planning Committee Training 

 Licensing Committee Training 

 Scrutiny Training 

 An Introduction to Local Government Structures and Finance 

 Domestic Abuse, Safeguarding & Prevent Training 

 Casework Guidance 

 Chairing Meetings Training 

 Equality & Diversity Training 

 Emergency Planning Training 
 

3.5 
 

Initial feedback from the councillors involved in the induction has been positive. 
However, as part of the induction it was stressed that feedback is welcome at any 
stage. Any feedback provided as a result of experience gained during new 
members’ first months in office will also be taken into account. 
 

3.6 Members will note that no elections are scheduled to be held for City of Lincoln 
Council seats in May 2017, and the Council will return to electing one-third of its 
councillors in May 2018. 
 

20



4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members note the report and offer any feedback regarding improving the 
future delivery of the induction process. 
 

 

21



This page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  20 JUNE 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
LOCAL DEMOCRACY WEEK UPDATE 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To provide an update on the Council’s plans for taking part in Local Democracy 

Week 2016. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 In 2014 the Council distributed a series of democracy-themed lesson plans to 
schools in Lincoln as part of Local Democracy Week. This course of action was 
chosen in preference to more time-intensive projects which would also be less 
easily offered to a wider number of students. 
 

2.2 In 2015 the Council approached all of the secondary schools and sixth forms in 
Lincoln with a view to arranging events encouraging engagement between young 
people and councillors. Events were held in two local schools with councillors and 
sixth-formers taking part to discuss the role of the councillor and how young people 
can play a greater part in local democracy. 
 

2.3 The Ethics & Engagement Committee has responsibility for encouraging democratic 
engagement and Local Democracy Week provides a useful opportunity to try to 
build awareness among young people of local democracy and how they can 
participate in civic life. 
 

3. October 2016 Plans 
 

3.1 
 

Local Democracy Week will take place from 10-16 October 2016. A letter has been 
sent to the head teacher of each secondary school in Lincoln highlighting the 
Council’s interest in facilitating events during Local Democracy Week. At the time of 
writing the report, one response has been received from teachers at the Priory 
Academy LSST expressing interest in building on an event held in 2015. 
 

3.2 
 

As in previous years, the format of any events has been left open to any feedback 
from interested schools. It is hoped that this increases the likelihood of schools 
responding to this request by allowing flexibility to work around individual schools’ 
priorities although officers have also sought to provide suggestions for possible 
events. Members are also therefore invited to suggest any particular themes, topics, 
or events which could be used to promote local democracy. 
 

3.3 
 

Any further events are likely to be dependent on the level of interest from schools. 
As noted above, lesson plans have previously been circulated to schools to provide 
an alternative source of democratic education.  

23

Item No. 6



 
4. Organisational Impacts  

 
4.1 Finance  

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members note the report and offer any suggestions regarding any events to be 
facilitated by the Council during Local Democracy Week. 
 

 

24



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE 20 JUNE 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 

REPORT BY: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To put forward the current Ethics and Engagement Committee work programme 

for consideration by members. 
 

2. Work Programme Summary 
 

2.1 The work programme is attached as Appendix A, and was agreed at the last 
meeting of the Committee. 
 

2.2 Members are encouraged to put forward any proposals for relevant matters of 
concern or interest to them or the residents of their ward which the Ethics and 
Engagement Committee may be able to consider. 
 

3. Changes Made to the Work Programme 
 

3.1 
 

At the meeting of 23 March 2016, the work programme for 2016/17 was agreed. 
There is flexibility within the work programme to react to changing priorities as 
necessary. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
Any additions to the work programme should be made in accordance with the 
scope of the Committee as established within its terms of reference. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That the Committee consider the work programme and propose any suitable 
changes if necessary. 
 

5.2 
 

That the Committee consider items scheduled for the next meeting and any 
necessary arrangements relating to them. 

 

25

Item No. 7



This page is intentionally blank.



APPENDIX A 
 

Ethics and Engagement Committee Work Programme 2016/17 
 

20 June 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Induction Review Following consideration of the plans for the induction of 
any newly-elected councillors in May 2016, this will 
provide an opportunity for members to consider the 
outcome of the induction provided to new members. 
 

 To consider the delivery of member 
inductions and to offer any 
recommendations for future 
improvement. 

Local Democracy Week 
Update 

To update members on the plans for Local Democracy 
Week 2016. 
 

 To consider the arrangements made 
and recommend any suitable changes. 

Electoral Registration 
Update 

Individual electoral registration (IER) has been 
introduced across the country, shifting the process for 
registering electors from a household to an individual 
basis. Following a report to the previous meeting, an 
update was requested to provide information relating to 
attempts to encourage the registration of those who had 
not been transitioned from the previous register. 
 

 To consider the ongoing impact of 
Individual Electoral Registration on the 
number of registered electors in 
Lincoln. 

 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme. 
 To consider the arrangements for the 

next meeting. 

 
 
12 September 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases To examine national developments of relevance to the  To note the issues raised and consider 

27



Review 
 

Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

a suitable response if required. 

Member Development 
Update 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 
perform their roles as effectively as possible.  
 

 To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme. 
 To consider the arrangements for the 

next meeting. 

 
 
5 December 2016 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Work Programme Update 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme for 
2015/16. 

 To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 
 
6 March 2017 
 

Topic Matter for Consideration Outcome 

Code of Conduct: Cases 
Review 
 

To examine national developments of relevance to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 To note the issues raised and consider 
a suitable response if required. 

Member Development 
Update 
 

Member development has become increasingly 
important in recent years as the Council seeks to ensure 
elected members have the skills and knowledge to 
perform their roles as effectively as possible.  

 To consider the current provision of 
member development and offer 
guidance on its future operation. 

28



 

Work Programme 2016/17 
 

The Committee’s work programme is agreed on an 
ongoing basis in consultation with the Chair and the 
Committee. 
 

 To agree the work programme for 
2016/17. 

 To consider the arrangements for the 
next meeting. 

 

 

29



T
his page is intentionally blank.



ETHICS AND ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE  20 JUNE 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS CONSIDERED BY 
THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK 

LEAD OFFICER: 
 

CAROLYN WHEATER – CITY SOLICITOR 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To report to the Ethics and Engagement Committee on any complaints received 

regarding members of the City of Lincoln Council relating to cases concerning 
alleged breaches of the Member Code of Conduct which the Monitoring Officer has 
closed. 
 

2. Constitutional Background 
 

2.1 Under section 28 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to have a code of 
conduct and to make provision for allegations to be investigated and determined. 
The Council has adopted such a code, which is attached as Appendix A. 
 

2.2 The Council is also required to seek the views of the Independent Person before 
making a decision on an allegation it has decided to investigate. 
 

2.3 Under Council Procedure Rule 13.4(d) the Monitoring Officer is given the following 
duties and powers in relation to conducting investigations, which are that he or she: 
 

(1) will receive complaints in writing regarding allegations of failure to comply 
with the Code of Conduct. 
 

(2) after consultation with the Independent Person, has the power to determine 
whether a complaint merits formal investigation and to arrange such 
investigation and to report quarterly to the Ethics and Engagement 
Committee on the discharge of this function. 

 
(3) will try to seek local resolution of complaints, without formal investigation 

wherever practicable, and have the discretion to refer decisions on 
investigation to the Ethics and Engagement Committee where he/she 
considers that it is inappropriate to take the decision, and to report quarterly 
to the Ethics and Engagement Committee on the discharge of this function. 

 
(4) has the power to close a code of conduct complaint if the investigation finds 

no evidence of failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and will report 
quarterly to the Ethics and Engagement Committee on the discharge of this 
function. 

 
 
 

31

Item No. 8



2.4 This report is provided in reference to the Monitoring Officer’s duty to report 
quarterly regarding any Member Code of Conduct complaint cases closed by the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 

3. Details of Member Code of Conduct Complaints Received and Closed 
 

3.1 
 

A complaint was received from a member of the public who had attended a ward 
surgery held by ward councillors from the City of Lincoln Council and a councillor for 
a local Lincolnshire County Council division. The member of public raised concerns 
relating to public highways near to her house, which was located outside the ward of 
the city councillors in attendance. However, the councillors agreed to consider her 
concerns and to offer any relevant advice. 
 

3.2 
 

The complainant alleged that one of the city councillors repeatedly interrupted her 
and made her feel uncomfortable through his ‘negative’ behaviour. The visit to the 
ward surgery allegedly ended with the complainant being told to leave by that 
councillor. A complaint was subsequently submitted to the Monitoring Officer in 
relation to the councillor’s behaviour. 
 

3.3 
 

The Monitoring Officer discussed the allegations with the Independent Person, the 
complainant and with the relevant councillor. With regard to the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct, the complainant’s allegations appeared to represent a prime facie 
breach of the following provisions: 
 

 To treat others with respect and not bully any person 

 To not conduct yourself in a manner which is likely to bring the authority into 
disrepute 

 
3.4 The councillor agreed that his behaviour had been inappropriate and therefore 

agreed to apologise to the complainant. The complainant accepted this as a 
resolution to the complaint. As such, no further action was required. 
 

4. Organisational Impacts  
 

4.1 Finance  
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Implications  
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 
 

That members note the report. 
 

 

32



Code of Conduct for Members 
 
1.0 Application 
 
1.1 This code applies to you whenever you are acting in your capacity as a member of 

this authority and it is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 
 
1.2 You are a representative of this authority and the public will view you as such 

therefore your actions impact on how the authority as a whole is viewed and your 
actions can have both positive and negative impacts on the authority. 

 
1.3 The Code is based upon the ‘Nolan Principles – the seven principles of public life’ 

which are set out as Appendix 1. 
 
2.0 Interpretation 
 
2.1 In this Code –  
 

“meeting” means any meeting of:  
 

(a) the authority; 
 

(b) the executive of the authority; 
 

(c) any of the authority’s or its executive’s committees, sub-committees, joint 
committees, joint sub-committees, or area committees; 

 
whether or not the press and public are excluded from the meeting in question by 
virtue of a resolution of members. 
 
“member” includes a co-opted member and an appointed member. 

 
3.0 General Conduct 
 
When acting in your role as a member of the authority: 

 
3.1 Do treat others with respect and not bully any person 

 
3.2 Do provide leadership to the authority by personal example 

 
3.3 Do not conduct yourself in a manner which is likely to bring the authority into 

disrepute 

 

3.4 Do use your position as a member in the public interest and not for personal 
advantage 

 

3.5 Do not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or 
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be 
aware, is of a confidential nature, except where: 

 
(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

 
(ii) you are required by law to do so 

APPENDIX A 

33



 

(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or 

 
(iv) the disclosure is: 

 
a. reasonable and in the public interest 

 
b. made in good faith and in compliance with the 

reasonable requirements of the authority; and 
 

c. you have consulted with the Monitoring Officer prior 
to its release if appropriate 

 
3.6 Do not prevent another person from gaining access to information to which 

that person is entitled to by law. 
 

3.7 When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the authority: 
 
3.7.1.1 Do act in accordance with the authority’s reasonable 

requirements including the requirements of the authority’s 
ICT policy, copies of which have been provided to you and 
you are deemed to have read; 
 

3.7.1.2 Do make sure that such resources are not used improperly 
for political purposes (including party political purposes); 
and 

 
3.7.1.3 Do have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of 

Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
4.0 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
You must –  
 

4.1 comply with the statutory requirements to register, disclose and withdraw from 
participating in respect of any matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. The statutory requirements with regards to disclosable pecuniary 
interests are attached as Appendix 2 to this code. 

 
4.2 ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and notify the Monitoring 

Officer in writing within 28 days of becoming aware of any change in respect of 
your disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
4.3 make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any disclosable 

pecuniary interest at any meeting at which you are present at which an item or 
business affects or relates to the subject matter of that interest is under 
consideration, at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon 
as the interest becomes apparent 

 
5.0  Other Interests 
 

34



5.1  You must, within 28 days of: 
 

(a) this Code being adopted by or applied to your authority; or 
 
(b) your election or appointment to office (where that is later), 
notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your other personal 
interests, where they fall within the following descriptions, for inclusion in the 
register of interests. 

 
5.2 You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where either it relates 

to or is likely to affect: 
 
(i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 

 
(ii) any body— 

 
(aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 
 
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or 

 
(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or trade union),  

 
of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management; 

 
(iii) any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry 
with it a right for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive 
income. 
 

5.3  You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to any 
interest registered under paragraph 5.1, notify the Monitoring Officer of the details of 
that new interest or change. 

 
6.0  Disclosure of interests 
 
6.1 Subject to paragraphs 6.2 to 6.5, where you have a personal interest described in 

paragraphs 5.2 or 6.2 in any business of your authority, and where you are aware or 
ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest, and you 
attend a meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must 
disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the 
commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent. 

 
6.2 (A) You have a personal interest in any business of your authority 
 

(i) where a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be 
regarded as affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-
being or financial position of a relevant person to a greater extent than 
the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of 
the electoral division or ward, as the case may be, affected by the 
decision, or 
 

(ii)  it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests you have registered 
as a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

35



(B) In paragraph 6.2(A), a relevant person is: 
 

(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 
association; or 
 
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm 
in which they are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
 
(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a 
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
(d) any body of a type described in paragraph 5.2. 

 
6.3 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority which relates to 

or is likely to affect a person described in paragraph 5.1(i) or (ii)(aa) you need only 
disclose to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest when you address 
the meeting on that business. 

 
6.4 Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 8, sensitive 

information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s register of members’ 
interests, you must indicate to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but 
need not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting. 

 
6.5 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have 

made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must ensure that any 
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest. 

 
7.0  Register of interests 
 
7.1 Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of 

interests. A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be 
published on the authority’s website. 

 
8.0  Sensitive interests 
 
8.1 Where you consider that disclosure of the details an interest could lead to you, or a 

person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the 
Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the 
register that are made available for inspection and any published version of the 
register will exclude details of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the 
details of which are withheld. 

 
9.0  Non-participation in case of pecuniary interest 
 
9.1 Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority you also have a 

pecuniary interest in that business where the interest is one which a member of the 
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant 
that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where that 
business— 

 
(a) affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body 
described in paragraphs 5.2 or 6.2;or 
 

36



(b) relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration in relation to you or any person or body described in paragraphs 
5.2 or 6.2. 

 
9.2 Subject to paragraphs 9.3 and 9.4, where you have a pecuniary interest in any 

business of your authority— 
 

a) You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting and 
should leave the room during consideration of the relevant matter. 

 
(b) You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  
 
(c) If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the 
meeting.  
 
(d) If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days. In addition this Code and Standing Orders requires you to leave the 
room where the meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 

9.3 Where you have a pecuniary interest in any business of your authority, you may 
attend a meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering 
questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory 
right or otherwise and you leave the room where the meeting is held immediately 
after making representations, answering questions or giving evidence.  

 
9.4.  Subject to you disclosing the interest at the meeting, you may attend a meeting and 

vote on a matter where you have a pecuniary interest that relates to the functions of 
your authority in respect of:  

 
(i) housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those 

functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease;  
 

(ii) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you 
are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a 
parent governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school 
which the child attends;  

 

(iii) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 
and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to 
the receipt of, such pay;  

 

(iv) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;  

 
(v) any ceremonial honour given to members; and  

 

(vi) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992. 

 
9.5.  Where, as an executive member, you may discharge a function alone, and you 

become aware of a pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with, or to be dealt with 
by you, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 

37



steps or further steps in the matter, or seek improperly to influence a decision about 
the matter. 

 
10.0  Interests arising in relation to scrutiny committees 
 
10.1 In relation to any business before a scrutiny committee of the authority (or of a sub-

committee of such a committee) where- 
 

10.1.1 That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or 
not) or action taken by your authority’s executive or another of your 
authority’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-
committees; and 

 
10.1.2 At the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a 

member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee 
or joint sub-committee mentioned in paragraph 10.1.1 and you were 
present when that decision was made or action was taken; 

 
                      Or 
 

10.1.3 that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) 
or action taken by you (whether by virtue of the Council’s constitution 
or under delegated authority from the Leader); 

 
You may attend a meeting of the scrutiny committee of your local 
authority or of a sub-committee of such a committee but only for the 
purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise. 

 
11.0 Gifts and Hospitality 
 
11.1    You must within 28 days of receipt, notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of  any 
gift,   benefit or hospitality with a value of in excess of £50 which you  have accepted as 
a member from any person  or body other than the  authority 
 
11.2 The Monitoring Officer will place your notification on a public register of gifts and 

hospitality 
 
11.3 This duty to notify the Monitoring Officer does not apply where the gift, benefit or 

hospitality comes within any description approved by the authority for this purpose. 
 

38



APPENDIX  1 
 
 

 
THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 
 
SELFLESSNESS 
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
 
INTEGRITY 
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not 
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 
 
OBJECTIVITY 
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 
 
OPENNESS 
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons 
for so doing. 
 
HONESTY 
Holders of public office should be truthful. 
 
LEADERSHIP 
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occurs. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



Appendix 2 
 

 
Disclosable pecuniary interests 

 
This note explains the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 (Ss 29-34) and The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, in relation to disclosable 
pecuniary interests. 
 
These provisions are enforced by criminal sanction.  
 
 
1 Notification of disclosable pecuniary interests 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, you must notify the Monitoring 
Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests’. 
 
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner (which means 
spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person 
with whom you are living as if you are civil partners) within the following descriptions: 
(In the extracts from the Regulations below, ‘M’ means you and ‘relevant person’ means you 
and your partner, as above) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession 
or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by M in carrying 
out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of M. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the 
relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to 
be provided or works are to be executed; 
and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) 
to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 
 

40



Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; 
and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a 
body where— 
(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of 
the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

 
 

These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions; 

 

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the 
relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a 
director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and 
provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not 
carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income; 

“M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; 

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives a 
notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of the 
Act; 

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the Act; 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 

 
2 Register of interests 

41



Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of interests. 
A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will be published on the 
authority’s website. 
 
3 Sensitive interests 
Where you consider that disclosure of the details of a disclosable pecuniary interest could 
lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and 
the Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is entered on the register, copies of the register 
that are made available for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude 
details of the interest, but may state that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, the 
details of which are withheld under Section 32(2). 
 
4 Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
A)   If you are present at a meeting of the authority, or any committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, 

1. You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting. 
2. You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 
3. If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting. 
4. If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, 

you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 
 

 Note: In addition, Standing Orders require you to leave the room where the meeting is held 
while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
B)   Where an executive member may discharge a function alone and becomes aware of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with or to be dealt with by her/him, the 
executive member must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any 
steps or further steps in the matter. 
 
5 Dispensations 
The authority may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, to enable you 
to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 
6 Offences 
It is a criminal offence to 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 
days of election 

 Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the register 

 Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary interest 
that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting 

 Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

 As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring Officer 
within 28 days of the interest. 

 Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in notifying 
the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in disclosing such interest 
to a meeting 
 

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding level 5 on the 
standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years. 

 

42


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 21 March 2016
	3 Individual Electoral Registration Update
	4 Code of Conduct: Cases Review
	Appendix A - Staffordshire Moorlands Decision Notice

	5 Member Induction Review
	6 Local Democracy Week Update
	7 Work Programme Update
	Work Programme Update - Appendix A

	8 Member Code of Conduct Complaint Considered by the Monitoring Officer
	Appendix A - Member Code of Conduct Complaints Considered by the Monitoring Officer


